














 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PRIME ORION PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
 
Unaudited Interim Consolidated Financial Statements 
March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013 



 

PRIME ORION PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Par Value and Number of Shares) 
  

 
UNAUDITED

March 31, 2014

AUDITED 
June 30, 2013 

As restated         
(Note 20) 

ASSETS  
Current Assets  
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4) P=318,429 P=663,821 
Receivables (Note 5) 794,589 873,292 
Inventories (Note 6) 20,616 34,810 
Real estate held for sale and development (Note 7) 429,497 280,179 
Amounts owed by related parties (Note 18) 22 24 
Available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets (Note 8) 1,464,767 1,220,130 
Held-to-maturity (HTM) investments (Note 9) - 2,000 
Other current assets (Note 10) 220,356 205,002 
Total Current Assets 3,248,276 3,279,258 
Noncurrent Assets  
Investment in associate (Note 11) 2,588 2,588 
Leasehold rights (Note 23) 1,060 4,239 
Investment properties (Note 12) 743,325 754,604 
Property, plant and equipment (Note 13) 681,247 704,975 
Software costs (Note 14) 7,430 7,893 
Other noncurrent assets (Note 15) 107,084 108,013 
Total Noncurrent Assets 1,542,734 1,582,312 
TOTAL ASSETS P=4,791,010 P=4,861,570 
  

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY   
Current Liabilities  
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Note 16) P=749,579 P=1,063,951 
Rental and other deposits (Note 17) 208,646 199,159 
Amounts owed to related parties (Note 18) - 2,673 
Total Current Liabilities 958,225 1,265,783 
Noncurrent Liabilities  
Retirement benefits liability (Note 20) 89,737 134,043 
Deferred income tax liabilities - net 226,699 148,156 
Subscriptions payable 481,675 481,675 
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 798,111 763,874 
Total Liabilities 1,756,336 2,029,657 
Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent  
Capital stock - P=1 par value  
 Authorized - 2,400,000,000 shares  
 Issued and subscribed - 2,367,149,383 shares  
  (net of subscriptions receivable of P=300,792 as at  
   March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013) 2,066,357 2,066,357 
Additional paid-in capital 829,904 829,904 
Revaluation increment on property, plant and equipment (Note 13) 259,844 259,844 
Unrealized valuation gain (losses) on AFS financial assets  
Re-measurement loss on retirement plans (Note 20)  

(7,338)  (4,762)
(53,269)  (51,526)

Deficit (127,819) (343,496) 
 2,967,679 2,756,321 
Non-Controlling Interests 66,995 75,592 
Total Equity 3,034,674 2,831,913 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY P=4,791,010 P=4,861,570 
  
See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 



PRIME ORION PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Earnings Per Share) 

 

 



PRIME ORION PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
(Amounts in Thousands) 
 

 



 

 

PRIME ORION PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2014 AND 2013 
(Amounts in Thousands) 
 

Capital Stock
Additional Paid In 

Capital

Revaluation 
Increment on 

Property, Plant and 
Equipment

Unrealized Valuation 
Gain (Loss) on AFS 

Investments

Remeasurement Gain 
(loss) on Retirement 

Plans (Note 20) Deficit
Non-Controlling 

Interests Total

Balances at June 30, 2012, as previously stated                2,066,357                   829,904                   261,018                         63,034                                 -                (1,073,928)               85,507                    2,231,893 
Effect of adoption of amendments to PAS 19 - net of tax  (Note 20)                             -                               -                               -                                   -                         (35,731)                          953                       -                         (34,778)
Balances at June 30, 2012, as restated                2,066,357                   829,904                   261,018                         63,034                       (35,731)              (1,072,975)               85,507                    2,197,115 
Net income (loss) for the period                             -                               -                               -                                   -                     525,658               (3,600)                       522,058 
Other comprehensive income (loss):
     Unrealized valuation loss on AFS investments                             -                           26,332                                 -                               -                      161                         26,493 
Total Comprehensive income (loss) as previously stated                             -                               -                               -                           26,332                                 -                     525,658               (3,439)                       548,551 
Effect of adoption of amendments to PAS 19 - net of tax (Note 20)                             -                               -                               -                                   -                         (11,846)                          951                       -                         (10,895)
Total Comprehensive income (loss) as restated                             -                               -                               -                           26,332                       (11,846)                   526,609               (3,439)                       537,656 
Unrealized gain transferred from equity to

consolidated statement of income                             -                               -                               -                         (62,151)                                 -                               -                         -                         (62,151)
Balances at March 31, 2013                2,066,357                   829,904                   261,018                         27,215                       (47,577)                 (546,366)               82,068                    2,672,620 

Balances at June 30, 2013, as previously stated                2,066,357                   829,904                   259,844                         (4,762)                                 -                   (345,718)               75,592                    2,881,217 
Effect of adoption of amendments to PAS 19 - net of tax  (Note 20)                             -                               -                               -                                   -                         (51,526)                       2,221                       -                         (49,304)
Balances at June 30, 2013, as restated                2,066,357                   829,904                   259,844                         (4,762)                       (51,526)                 (343,496)               75,592                    2,831,913 
Net loss for the period                             -                               -                               -                                   -                     214,098               (8,039)                       206,059 
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the period
     Unrealized valuation loss on AFS investments                             -                               -                               -                           (1,950)                                 -                               -                 (4,003)                         (5,953)
Total Comprehensive income (loss) for the period                             -                               -                               -                           (1,950)                                 -                     214,098             (12,042)                       200,106 
Effect of adoption of amendments to PAS 19 - net of tax (Note 20)                         (1,744)                         (1,744)
Unrealized gain transferred from equity to

consolidated statement of income                             -                               -                               -                              (625)                                 -                               -                         -                              (625)
Effect of deconsolidation of a subdiary                             -                               -                               -                                   -                                   -                         1,579                 3,445                           5,024 

Balances at March 31, 2014                2,066,357                   829,904                   259,844                         (7,337)                       (53,269)                 (127,820)               66,995                    3,034,673 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements



 

 

PRIME ORION PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(Amounts in Thousands) 

 



 

 

PRIME ORION PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 
 
1. Corporate Information and Status of Operations 

 
Corporate Information 
Prime Orion Philippines, Inc. (POPI; the Parent Company) was incorporated and registered with the 
Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on May 19, 1989.  The Parent Company’s 
registered office address is 20th Floor LKG Tower, 6801 Ayala Avenue, Makati City.  The Parent 
Company’s primary purpose is to acquire by purchase, exchange, assign, donate or otherwise, and to hold, 
own and use, for investment or otherwise and to sell, assign, transfer, exchange, lease, develop, mortgage, 
pledge, traffic, deal in and with, and otherwise operate, enjoy and dispose of any and all properties of 
every kind and description and wherever situated, as and to the extent permitted by law, including but not 
limited to, buildings, tenements, warehouses, factories, edifices and structures and other improvements, 
and bonds, debentures, promissory notes, shares of capital stock, or other securities and obligations, 
created, negotiated or issued by any corporation, association, or other entity, domestic or foreign. 
 
Prime Orion Philippines, Inc. and its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as “the Group”, have principal 
business interests in holding companies, real estate and property development, financial services and 
manufacturing and distribution (see Note 22). 
 
Status of Operations 
On December 23, 2011, Lepanto Ceramics, Inc. (LCI; a subsidiary) filed a Petition for Rehabilitation (PR) 
with the Regional Trial Court (RTC) of Calamba under the Financial Rehabilitation and Insolvency Act of 
2010, to arrest its continuing financial losses for the past several years and to enable it to eventually meet 
its financial obligations to its creditors.  On March 26, 2012, the Court issued an Order, giving due course 
to the PR and directing the Rehabilitation Receiver (RR) to submit an amended Rehabilitation Plan (RP) 
based on comments submitted by creditors.   
 
However, the Revised and Restated RP, the Second Amended and Restated RP, and the Third Amended 
and Restated RP, all of which were crafted by the RR, were respectively voted upon and rejected by the 
creditors.  On November 28, 2012, the RR submitted to the Court the Third Amended and Restated RP 
with the Recommendation to Confirm the Third Amended and Restated RP Pursuant to Section 63, of 
Republic Act No. 10142. 
 
On December 20, 2012, the Court issued an Order approving the Third Amended and Restated RP and 
ordering LCI to submit a Status Report on the implementation thereof every 90 days. On January 11, 2013, 
the RR issued a Notice to Creditors that the pay-out of claims would commence on January 21, 2013.  
 
The following are the conditions provided in the Third Amended and Restated RP approved by the Court: 
 

(a) Class 1 (Workers) shall be paid the full amount of their allowed claims within one (1) year from 
approval of the Third Amended and Restated RP; 

(b) Class 2 (Local Government of Calamba) shall be paid the full amount of its allowed claim 
within one (1) year from approval of the Third Amended and Restated RP; 

(c) Class 3 (Trade) Creditors will condone 85% of their allowed claims; 
(d) Class 4 (Non-Trade Unsecured) Creditors will advance to LCI such amount necessary to pay 

15% of the allowed claim of each Class 3 (Trade) Creditor; 
(e) The post commencement advances of Class 4 (Non-Trade Unsecured) Creditors will be 

converted to voting common shares; 
(f) The pre-commencement allowed claims of Class 4 (Non-Trade Unsecured) Creditors will be 

condoned; 
(g) Class 5 (Secured) Creditor will condone its claims in excess of the market value of LCI’s assets 

which serve as a security for LCI’s liability to the Secured Creditor. All servicing of the 
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remaining claims of Class 5 (Secured) Creditor will be made after the Class 3 (Trade) Creditors 
are settled; and 

(h) The common shares held by the Class 5 (Secured Creditor) in LCI will be converted to preferred 
shares.    

 
On August 22, 2013, LCI filed a Motion to Amend the Rehabilitation Plan seeking the amendments to the 
Third Amended and Restated RP (a) inclusion of the Deposit for Future Subscription of Orion I Holdings 
Philippines, Inc. (OIHPI) in the amount of P= 373.6 million among the claims to be condoned; (b) 
Condonation of the claims of OIHPI to the extent of 60% of the market value of LCI’s assets securing the 
Mortgage Trust Indenture and Collateral Trust Indenture, or in the amount of P= 677.5 million.                   
On March 3, 2014, the Court issued an Order approving the amendments.   
 
On August 6, 2012, the Board of Directors (BOD) of OYL Holdings, Inc. (OYLHI; a subsidiary) approved 
its immediate dissolution and commenced its liquidation thereafter.  Consequently, OYLHI changed its 
basis of accounting from going-concern basis to liquidation basis of accounting.  On November 14, 2012, 
the SEC approved the amended articles of incorporation of OYLHI that shorten its corporate term to 
December 31, 2013. As of March 31, 2014, OYLHI was deconsolidated from the Group.  
 
On September 5, 2012, certain investments properties and property, plant and equipment of Tutuban 
Properties, Inc. (TPI; a subsidiary) located at Claro M. Recto, Manila were damaged by fire.  Fixed assets 
that were completely destroyed were written off, while those partially damaged assets amounting to            
P=6.6 million were provided with an allowance for impairment. 
 
As at March 31, 2014, the insurance policy in force with FLT Prime Insurance Corporation (FPIC), a 
related party, includes the fire loss event for the investment properties and property, plant and equipment 
affected by the fire.  The insurance policy was substantially ceded by FPIC to third party reinsurers.  
 
The unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Group as at March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013 and 
for the nine months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 were approved and authorized for issuance by the 
BOD on May 15, 2014. 
 
 

2. Basis of Preparation, Statement of Compliance, Basis of Consolidation and Summary of Significant 
Accounting and Financial Reporting Policies 
 
Basis of Preparation 
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for AFS 
investments, land, land improvements, building and building improvements under “property, plant and 
equipment” which are carried at fair values.  The consolidated financial statements are presented in 
Philippine peso, which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency.  All values are rounded off to 
the nearest thousand (P=000) except when otherwise indicated. 

 
Statement of Compliance 
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in compliance with Philippine 
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). 
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Basis of Consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries as at 
March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013: 

 

Subsidiaries Nature of Business 
Effective Percentage  

of Ownership 

  
March 31, 

2014 
June 30, 

2013 
Real Estate, Property Development 

 and Others:    
Orion Land, Inc. (OLI) and Subsidiaries:    
 OLI Real Estate and Investment 

Holding Company 100.0 100.0 
 TPI and Subsidiaries:    

TPI Real Estate, Mall Operations 100.0 100.0 
  TPI Holdings Corporation (TPIHC) Investment Holding Company 100.0 100.0 
 Orion Property Development, Inc. (OPDI) 

 and Subsidiaries:    
OPDI Real Estate Development 100.0 100.0 

  Orion Beverage, Inc. (OBI) * Manufacturing 100.0 100.0 
 Luck Hock Venture Holdings, Inc. Other Business Activities 60.0 60.0 
    
Manufacturing and Distribution:    
OIHPI and Subsidiaries:    
 OIHPI Financial Holding Company 100.0 100.0 
 LCI Manufacture of Ceramic Floor and 

Wall Tiles 100.0 100.0 
 OYLHI** Financial Holding Company - 60.0 
    
Financial Services and Others:    
OE Holdings, Inc. (OEHI) and Subsidiaries:    
 OEHI Wholesale and Trading 100.0 100.0 
 Orion Maxis Inc. (OMI) Marketing and Administrative 

Services 100.0 100.0 
 ZHI Holdings, Inc. (ZHI) Financial Holding Company 100.0 100.0 
FPIC Non-Life Insurance Company 70.0 70.0 
Orion Solutions, Inc. (OSI) Management Information 

Technology Consultancy Services 100.0 100.0 
* Inactive 
 

   
  ** Deconsolidated as of March 31, 2014 

 
All of the companies are incorporated and based in the Philippines. 
 
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and cease to be 
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred out of the Group. 

 
The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same accounting period as the Parent 
Company using uniform accounting policies.  All significant intercompany transactions and balances 
between and among the Group, including intercompany profits and unrealized profits, have been 
eliminated in the consolidation. 

 
Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets in the subsidiaries not held 
by the Group and are presented separately in the consolidated statement of income, consolidated statement 
of comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated statement of financial position, separately 
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from the equity holders of the parent.   
 
Changes in Accounting Policies 
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the 
adoption of the following new and amended PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) and Philippine 
Interpretation International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) which were adopted as 
at July 1, 2013: 

 
 PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 

(Amendments), requires an entity to disclose information about rights of set-off and related 
arrangements (such as collateral agreements).  The new disclosures are required for all recognized 
financial instruments that are set off in accordance with PAS 32.  These disclosures also apply to 
recognized financial instruments that are subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or 
‘similar agreement’, irrespective of whether they are set-off in accordance with PAS 32.  The 
amendments require entities to disclose, in a tabular format unless another format is more appropriate, 
the following minimum quantitative information. This is presented separately for financial assets and 
financial liabilities recognized at the end of the reporting period: 
 
a) The gross amounts of those recognized financial assets and recognized financial liabilities; 
b) The amounts that are set off in accordance with the criteria in PAS 32 when determining the net 

amounts presented in the consolidated statement of financial position; 
c) The net amounts presented in the consolidated statement of financial position; 
d) The amounts subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement that are 

not otherwise included in (b) above, including: 
i. Amounts related to recognized financial instruments that do not meet some or all of the 
offsetting criteria in PAS 32; and 
ii. Amounts related to financial collateral (including cash collateral); and 

e) The net amount after deducting the amounts in (d) from the amounts in (c) above. 
 

 PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
January 1, 2013, replaces the portion of PAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, that 
addresses the accounting for consolidated financial statements.  It also includes the issues raised in 
Standing Interpretation Committee (SIC)-12, Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities.  It establishes a 
single control model that applies to all entities including special purpose entities.  The changes 
introduced by PFRS 10 will require management to exercise significant judgment to determine which 
entities are controlled, and therefore, are required to be consolidated by a parent, compared with the 
requirements that were in PAS 27. 
 

 PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests with Other Entities, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
January 1, 2013, includes all of the disclosures that were previously in PAS 27 related to consolidated 
financial statements, as well as all of the disclosures that were previously included in PAS 31 and PAS 
28.  These disclosures relate to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and 
structured entities. 
 

 PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
January 1, 2013, establishes a single source of guidance under PFRS for all fair value measurements.  
PFRS 13 does not change when an entity is required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on 
how to measure fair value under PFRS when fair value is required or permitted.  The amendments 
affect disclosures only and have no impact on the Group’s financial position or performance. 
 

 Revised PAS 19, Employee Benefits, effective for annual periods beginning on or after  
January 1, 2013, includes changes such as removing the corridor mechanism and the concept of 
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expected returns on plan assets to simple clarifications and re-wording.  It also receives new 
disclosures such as, among others, a sensitive analysis for each significant actuarial assumption, 
information on asset-liability matching strategies, duration of the defined benefit obligation, and 
disaggregation of plan assets by nature and risk. 
 

 PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after January 1, 2013, explains that as a consequence of the new PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements, and 
PFRS 12, PAS 28 has been renamed PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, and 
describes the application of the equity method to investments in joint ventures in addition to associates.  
The new standard is applicable but its impact is still to be assessed by the Group. 
 

 Annual improvements to PFRSs (2009-2011 cycle). 
  
The adoption of the new and amended standards and interpretations above do not have an impact on the 
accounting policies, financial position or performance of the Group. 
 

Future Changes in Accounting Policies 
The Group did not early adopt the following standards and Philippine Interpretations: 
 
Effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2014: 

 
 Amendments to PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and 

Financial Liabilities, effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014, these 
amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off” and also 
clarify the application of the PAS 32 offsetting criteria to settlement systems (such as central clearing 
house systems) which apply gross settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous.  The amendments 
affect presentation only and have no impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.  The 
amendments to PAS 32 are to be applied retrospectively. 
 

 PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 27, Investment Entities - Exception to consolidation (Amendments), 
provide an exception to the consolidation requirement for entities that meet the definition of an 
investment entity.  The exception to consolidation requires investment entities to account for 
subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with PFRS 9/PAS 39. 
 
An investment entity does not consolidate its subsidiaries (unless the subsidiary provides services that 
relate only to the entity’s own investment activities). 
 
The exception to consolidation applied by investment entities are not retained by parent entities that 
are not themselves investment entities. That is, a parent entity that is not an investment entity itself is 
not permitted to apply the investment entity accounting in its consolidated financial statements.  
Instead, it must consolidate all entities that it controls, including those controlled through an 
investment entity.  The amended standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
January 1, 2014.  The amended standards are not expected to have an impact on the consolidated 
financial statements. 
 

 PAS 36, Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-financial Assets (Amendments), is effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014.  The amendments removed the requirement to 
disclose the recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit for which the carrying amount of goodwill 
or intangible assets with indefinite useful lives allocated to that unit is significant when compared to 
the entity’s total carrying amount of goodwill or intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. 

 
Instead, an entity is only required to disclose the recoverable amount of an individual asset (including 
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goodwill) or a cash-generating unit for which it has recognized or reversed an impairment loss.  It also 
requires disclosures to be made on fair value measurement on impaired assets when the recoverable 
amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal.  It further requires disclosure on the discount 
rate(s) used when the recoverable amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal that was 
measured using a present value technique.  The amendments to PAS 36 are to be applied 
retrospectively.  The amended standard is not expected to have an impact on the consolidated financial 
statements.  

 
 PAS 39, Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting (Amendments), is effective 

for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014.  Novation of hedging instrument will not 
discontinue hedge accounting when all of the following conditions are met: 
 

i. Novation arose as a consequence of laws or regulations, or the introduction of laws or 
regulations. 

ii. The parties to the hedging instrument agree that one or more clearing counterparties replace 
their original counterparty to become the new counterparty to each of the parties. 

iii. Novation did not result in changes to the terms of the original derivative other than changes 
directly attributable to the change in counterparty to achieve clearing. 

 
The amendments to PAS 39 are to be applied retrospectively.  The amended standard is not expected to 
have an impact on the consolidated financial statements. 

 
 Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 21, Levies, is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 

January 1, 2014.  This interpretation covers accounting for all levies except those that are within the 
scope of other standards and fines or penalties for breaches of legislation.  Adoption of the 
interpretation when it becomes effective will not have any impact on the Group’s consolidated 
financial statements. 
 

 
Effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015: 

 
 PFRS 9, Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement, effective for annual periods 

beginning on or after January 1, 2015, reflects the first phase on the replacement of  
PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and applies to classification and 
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities as defined in PAS 39.  Work on impairment of 
financial instruments and hedge accounting is still ongoing, with a view to replacing PAS 39 in its 
entirety.  PFRS 9 requires all financial assets to be measured at fair value at initial recognition.  A debt 
financial asset may, if the fair value option (FVO) is not invoked, be subsequently measured at 
amortized cost if it is held within a business model that has the objective to hold the assets to collect 
the contractual cash flows and its contractual terms give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding.  All other debt instruments are 
subsequently measured at FVPL.  All equity financial assets are measured at fair value either through 
OCI or profit or loss.  Equity financial assets held for trading must be measured at FVPL.  For FVO 
liabilities, the amount of change in the fair value of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit 
risk must be presented in OCI.  The remainder of the change in fair value is presented in profit or loss, 
unless presentation of the fair value change in respect of the liability’s credit risk in OCI would create 
or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.  All other PAS 39 classification and measurement 
requirements for financial liabilities have been carried forward into PFRS 9, including the embedded 
derivative separation rules and the criteria for using the FVO.   
 
The Group made an evaluation of the impact of the adoption of the standard based on the audited 
financial statements as at June 30, 2013 and decided not to early adopt PFRS 9 in its 2013 financial 
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reporting ahead of its effectivity date on January 1, 2015.  The adoption of the first phase of PFRS 9 
will have an effect on the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial assets, but will 
potentially have no impact on the classification and measurement of financial liabilities.  

 
To be Determined 

 
 Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreement for Construction of Real Estate, covers accounting for 

revenue and associated expenses by entities that undertake the construction of real estate directly or 
through subcontractors.  The interpretation requires that revenue on construction of real estate be 
recognized only upon completion, except when such contract qualifies as construction contract to be 
accounted for under PAS 11 or involves rendering of services in which case revenue is recognized 
based on stage of completion.  Contracts involving provision of services with the construction 
materials and where the risks and reward of ownership are transferred to the buyer on a continuous 
basis will also be accounted for based on stage of completion.  The SEC and the Financial Reporting 
Standards Council have deferred the effectivity of this interpretation until the final Revenue standard is 
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and an evaluation of the requirements of the 
final Revenue standard against the practices of the Philippine real estate industry is completed.  
Adoption of the interpretation when it becomes effective will not have any impact on the Group’s 
consolidated financial statements. 

 
The Group does not expect any significant impact in the consolidated financial statements when it adopts 
the above standards and interpretations.  The revised and additional disclosures provided by the standards 
and interpretations will be included in the financial statements when these are adopted in the future, if 
applicable. 
 
Summary of Significant Accounting and Financial Reporting Policies 
 
Presentation of Financial Statements 
The Group has elected to present all items of recognized income and expense in two statements: a 
statement displaying components of consolidated profit or loss (separate consolidated statement of income) 
and a second statement beginning with consolidated profit or loss and displaying components of other 
comprehensive income (consolidated statement of comprehensive income). 
 
Financial Instruments - Initial Recognition  
Financial assets within the scope of PAS 39 are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss (FVPL), loans and receivables, HTM investments, AFS financial assets, or as derivatives designated 
as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.  The Group determines the classification of 
its financial assets at initial recognition. 
 
All financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of 
financial instruments recorded at FVPL. 
 
Purchases or sales of financial instruments that require delivery of assets within a time frame established 
by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date (i.e., 
the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset). 

 
As at March 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group’s financial assets are in the nature of loans and receivables, 
AFS financial assets and HTM investments.  The Group has no financial assets at fair value though profit 
or loss as at March 31, 2014 and 2013. 
 
Financial liabilities within the scope of PAS 39 are classified as financial liabilities at FVPL, as derivatives 
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, or as other financial liabilities.  The Group 
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determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. 
 
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and in the case of other financial liabilities, plus 
directly attributable transaction costs.  
 
As at March 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group’s financial liabilities are in the nature of other financial 
liabilities.  As at March 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group has no financial liabilities classified as at FVPL. 
 
Financial Instruments - Subsequent Measurement 
The subsequent measurement of financial instruments depends on their classification as follows: 
 
Loans and Receivables 
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market.  After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at 
amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less impairment.  Amortized cost is 
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an 
integral part of the EIR.  The EIR amortization is included in interest income in the consolidated statement 
of income.  Gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of income when the loans and 
receivables are impaired or derecognized.  Loans and receivables are included in current assets if maturity 
is within twelve (12) months from the end of the reporting period.  Otherwise, these are classified as 
noncurrent assets. 
 
The Group’s loans and receivables include cash and cash equivalents, receivables and amounts owed by 
related parties (see Notes 4, 5, and 18). 
 

 
AFS Financial Assets 
AFS financial assets include equity investments and debt securities.  Equity investments classified as AFS 
are those that are neither classified as held for trading nor designated at FVPL.  Debt securities in this 
category are those that are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and that may be sold in 
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the market conditions. 
 
Financial assets may be designated at initial recognition as AFS financial assets if they are purchased and 
held indefinitely, and may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes in market conditions. 
 
AFS financial assets are included in current assets if it is expected to be realized or disposed of within 
twelve (12) months from the end of the reporting period.  Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent 
assets. 

 
After initial recognition, AFS financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with unrealized 
gains and losses recognized under OCI in the “Unrealized valuation gains (losses) on AFS financial assets” 
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity until the investment is derecognized, at which time the 
cumulative gain or loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of income, or the investment is 
determined to be impaired, when the cumulative loss is reclassified from equity to the consolidated 
statement of income as finance costs. 

 
Where the Group holds more than one investment in the same security, these are deemed to be disposed of 
on a first-in, first-out basis.  Interest earned on holding AFS financial assets are reported as interest income 
using the EIR.  Dividends earned on holding AFS financial assets are recognized in the consolidated 
statement of income when the right of payment has been established.  The losses arising from impairment 
of such investments are recognized in the consolidated statement of income. 
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The Group’s listed and nonlisted equity securities and quoted and unquoted debt securities are classified 
under this category (see Note 8). 

 
HTM Investments 
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are classified as 
HTM investments when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.  After initial 
measurement, HTM investments are measured at amortized cost using the EIR, less impairment.  
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or 
costs that are integral part of the EIR.  The EIR amortization is included in interest income in the 
consolidated statement of income.  Where the Group sells other than an insignificant amount of HTM 
investments, the entire category would be tainted and reclassified as AFS financial assets and the Group 
will be precluded from using the HTM investments account for the current period and for the next two 
succeeding periods from tainting date.  Gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of 
income when the investments are derecognized or impaired. 
 
Other Financial Liabilities 
After initial recognition, interest-bearing other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized 
cost using the EIR method.  Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any issue costs, and any 
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.  Gains and losses 
are recognized in the consolidated statement of income when the liabilities are derecognized as well as 
through the amortization process. 
 
The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts payable and accrued expenses, rental and other deposits 
and amounts owed to related parties (see Notes 16, 17 and 18). 
 
Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
The fair value of financial instruments that are actively traded in organized financial markets is determined 
by reference to the quoted market prices (bid price for long positions and ask price for short positions) at 
the close of business at the end of the reporting period, without any reduction for transaction costs.  When 
current bid and ask prices are not available, the price of the most recent transaction provides evidence of 
the current fair value as long as there has not been a significant change in economic circumstances since 
the time of the transaction. 

 
For all other financial instruments not listed in an active market, fair value is determined using valuation 
technique.  Valuation techniques include net present value techniques, comparison to similar instruments 
for which market observable prices exist, option pricing models and other relevant valuation model.   

 
“Day 1” Difference  
Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different to the fair value from other observable 
current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose variables 
include only data from observable market, the Group recognizes the difference between the transaction 
price and fair value (a “Day 1” difference) in the consolidated statement of income unless it qualifies for 
recognition as some other type of asset or liability.  In cases where the data used is not observable, the 
difference between the transaction price and model value is only recognized in the consolidated statement 
of income when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized.  For each 
transaction, the Group determines the appropriate method of recognizing the “Day 1” difference amount. 

 
An analysis of fair values of financial instruments and further details as to how they are measured are 
provided in Note 26. 
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Offsetting of Financial Instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are only offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated 
statement of financial position when there is a currently legally enforceable right to set off the recognized 
amounts and the Group intends to either settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously.  This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, and the related assets and 
liabilities are presented at gross amounts in the consolidated statement of financial position. 
 
Impairment of Financial Assets 
The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a 
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.  A financial asset or a group of financial assets is 
deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more 
events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss 
event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets 
that can be reliably estimated.  Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group 
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal 
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and where 
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as 
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults. 
 
Financial Assets Carried at Amortized Cost 
For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Group first assesses whether objective evidence of 
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for 
financial assets that are not individually significant.  If the Group determines that no objective evidence of 
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the 
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for 
impairment.  Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or 
continues to be, recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment. 
 
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured 
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows 
(excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred).  The present value of the 
estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial assets original EIR.  If a loan has a variable 
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current EIR.   
 
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the 
loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of income.  Loans and receivables, together with the 
associated allowance, are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery.  Interest income 
continues to be recognized based in the original EIR.  If in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated 
impairment loss decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the 
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not 
exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date. 
 
AFS Financial Assets Carried at Fair Values 
For AFS financial assets, the Group assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is objective 
evidence that an investment or group of investment is impaired. 

 
In the case of equity investments classified as AFS financial assets, objective evidence would include a 
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investments below its cost.  “Significant” is to be 
evaluated against the original cost of the investment or “prolonged” against the period in which the fair 
value has been below its original cost.  When there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss, 
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value less any impairment loss 
on that financial asset previously recognized as OCI in the consolidated statement of comprehensive 
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income, is removed from equity and recognized in the consolidated statement of income.  Impairment 
losses on equity investments are not reversed through the consolidated statement of income while increases 
in fair value after impairment are recognized directly in OCI in equity. 
 
In the case of debt instruments classified as AFS financial assets, impairment is assessed based on the 
same criteria as financial assets carried at amortized cost.  However, the amount recorded for impairment 
is the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortized cost and the current fair value, 
less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in profit or loss. 
Future interest income continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued based 
on the rate of interest used to discount future cash flows for the purpose of measuring impairment loss.  
The interest income is recorded in the consolidated statement of income.  If, in subsequent year, the fair 
value of a debt instrument increased and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after 
the impairment loss was recognized in the consolidated statement of income, the impairment loss is 
reversed through the consolidated statement of income. 
 
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried 
at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to and 
must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument has been incurred, the amount of the 
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated 
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. 

 
Derecognition of Financial Instruments 
Financial Assets 
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial 
assets) is derecognized when: 

 
 the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; 

 
 the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation 

to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to third party under a “pass-through” 
arrangement; and either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or (b) 
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has 
transferred control of the asset. 
 

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained all the risks and rewards of 
ownership.  When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the 
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Group’s continuing 
involvement in the asset.  In that case, the Group also recognizes an associated liability.  The transferred 
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that 
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.  Continuing involvement that takes the form 
of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the 
asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay. 
 
Financial Liabilities 
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or has 
expired. 
 
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different 
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is 
treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference 
in the respective carrying amounts of a financial liability extinguished or transferred to another party and 
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the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed is recognized in the 
consolidated statement of income. 
 
Inventories 
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV). 

 
Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location are accounted for as follows: 
 Raw materials, factory supplies and spare parts - purchase cost on a moving-average method; 

 
 Finished goods and work in progress - direct materials, labor, and proportion of manufacturing 

overhead based on normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs. 
 
The NRV is the selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the 
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.  NRV of raw materials, factory supplies and spare parts is the 
current replacement cost.  In determining NRV, the Group considers any adjustment necessary for 
obsolescence. 

 
Real Estate Held for Sale and Development 
Real estate held for sale and development is carried at the lower of cost and NRV.  NRV is the selling 
price in the ordinary course of business less the costs of completion, marketing and distribution.  Cost 
includes acquisition cost of the land plus development and improvement costs.  Borrowing costs incurred 
on loans obtained to finance the improvements and developments of real estate held for sale and 
development are capitalized while development is in progress.  Repossessions are reacquired property 
which is measured at carried at the lower of cost and NRV at the date of reacquisition. 
 
Creditable Withholding Taxes (CWT) 
CWT which are claimed against income tax due represents excess of the tax payable and are carried over 
in the succeeding period for the same purpose. 
 
Input Value-added Tax (VAT) 
Input VAT represents VAT imposed on the Group by its suppliers for the purchase of domestic goods 
and/or services as required by Philippine taxation laws and regulations.  Input VAT is presented as current 
asset. 
 
Investments in Associates 
The Group’s investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method.  An associate is an entity 
in which the Group has significant influence.   
 
Under the equity method, the investments in associates are carried in the consolidated statement of 
financial position at cost plus post acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate. 
 
When there has been a change recognized directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognizes its 
share of any changes and discloses this, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in 
equity.  Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associates are 
eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate. 
 
The Group’s share of profit of an associate is shown on the face of the consolidated statement of income.  
This is the profit attributable to equity holders of the associate and, therefore, is profit after tax and non-
controlling interests in the subsidiaries of the associate. 
 
The financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group.  When 
necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group. 
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After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognize an 
additional impairment loss on its investments in associates.  The Group determines at each reporting date 
whether there is any objective evidence that the investments in associates are impaired.  If this is the case, 
the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the 
associates and its carrying value and recognizes the amount in the “Equity on net income of associates” in 
the consolidated statement of income. 
 
Upon loss of significant influence over the associates, the Group measures and recognizes any retaining 
investment at its fair value.  Any difference between the carrying amount of the associates upon loss of 
significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognized 
in profit or loss. 

 
In the Parent Company’s separate financial statements, investments in associates are accounted for at cost 
less impairment losses. 
 
The effective percentage of ownership in investment in associate as at March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013 
are as follows: 
 

 
Effective Percentage 

of Ownership 
 March 31, 2014 June 30, 2013
BIB Aurora Insurance Brokers, Inc. (BAIBI) 20.0 20.0 

 
Leasehold Rights 
Leasehold rights are stated at cost and are amortized on a straight line basis over the remaining term of the 
lease from the start of commercial operation. 

 
Investment Properties 
The Group’s investment properties include properties utilized in its mall operations, condominium unit, 
commercial building and certain land which are held for rentals while the rest of the land is held for capital 
appreciation.  

 
Investment properties utilized in its mall operations are stated at their revalued amount as deemed cost as 
allowed under PFRS less accumulated depreciation and amortization and any accumulated impairment 
losses.  Condominium unit and commercial building are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
any accumulated impairment losses.  Land is stated at cost less any impairment in value. 
 
The initial cost of investment properties include the cost of replacing part of an existing investment 
property at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met; and excludes the costs of day-
to-day servicing of an investment property.  Leasehold improvements under investment properties 
(including buildings and structures) on the leased land are carried at cost less accumulated amortization 
and any impairment in value. 
 
Investment properties are derecognized when they have been disposed of or when the investment property 
is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.  The 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in the 
consolidated statement of income in the period of de-recognition. 

 
Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use.  For a transfer from 
investment property to owner-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair 
value at the date of change in use.  If owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group 
accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property, plant and equipment up to 



- 14 - 
 
 

 

the date of change in use. 
 
Leasehold improvements and investment properties are amortized on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful lives or the term of the lease, whichever is shorter. 
 
The lease contract on a land where investment property is located is for twenty five (25) years, which is 
also the amortization period of the investment property.  In December 2009, the lease contract on a land 
where the Group’s primary investment property is located was renewed (see Note 23).  As a result of the 
lease renewal, and the review of the estimated useful life and amortization period of the said investment 
property, management came to a conclusion that there has been a significant change in the expected 
pattern of economic benefits from the said property of the Group.  As a result, the Group prospectively 
revised the remaining amortization period of this property from an average of twenty five (25) years 
(which is the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful life) to thirty five (35) years.  The change 
has been accounted for as a change in accounting estimates. 
 
Property, Plant and Equipment 
Land and improvements and buildings and improvements at revalued amount 
Land and buildings together with their improvements are stated at appraised values were determined by an 
independent firm of appraisers.  The excess of appraised values over the acquisition costs of the properties 
is shown under the “Revaluation increment in property, plant and equipment” account in the consolidated 
statement of financial position and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.  An amount 
corresponding to the difference between the depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the 
asset and depreciation based on the original cost is transferred annually from “Revaluation increment on 
property, plant and equipment” to “Deficit” accounts in the consolidated statement of financial position. 

 
Leasehold improvements, machinery and equipment, transportation equipment, furniture, fixtures and 
equipment and hotel equipment at cost 
Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation, amortization and any 
impairment in value.  The initial cost of property, plant and equipment consists of its purchase price, 
including import duties, taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the property, plant and 
equipment to its working condition and location for its intended use.  Expenditures incurred after the 
property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance and overhaul 
costs, are normally charged to operations in the year in which the costs are incurred.  In situations where it 
can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in the future economic 
benefit expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property, plant and equipment beyond its 
originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as an additional cost of 
property, plant and equipment. 
 
Depreciation and amortization are calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the 
property, plant and equipment as follows: 

 Years 
Land improvements  30 
Buildings and improvements 30 
Machinery and equipment 5-10 
Transportation equipment 5 
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-5 
Condominium units and improvements 25 
Hotel equipment 5 

 
Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over three (3) to five (5) years or the term 
of the lease, whichever is shorter. 
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An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal.  Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset 
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is 
included in the consolidated statement of income in the year the asset is derecognized. 
 
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation and amortization methods are reviewed and adjusted if 
appropriate, at each end of the reporting period. 
 
Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until these are no longer in use.  When assets are sold 
or retired, the cost and the related accumulated depreciation and amortization and any impairment in value 
are eliminated from the accounts and any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is included in the 
consolidated statement of income. 
 
Software Costs 
Software costs acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The initial cost of software 
costs consists of its purchase price, including import duties, taxes and any directly attributable costs of 
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.  Following initial recognition, 
software costs are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment loss.  
 
Software costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives of three (3) to 
five (5) years. 

 
The period and method of amortization for software costs with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at 
each financial year end.  Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of 
future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortization period or 
method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.   
 
The amortization expense on software costs with finite lives is recognized in the consolidated statement of 
income. 

 
Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets 
 
Inventories 
The Group recognizes provision for inventory losses when the net realizable values of inventory items 
become lower than the costs due to obsolescence or other causes.  Obsolescence is based on the physical 
and internal condition of inventory items.  Obsolescence is also established when inventory items are no 
longer marketable.  Obsolete goods, when identified, are written down to their net realizable values.  
 
Real Estate for Sale and Development, Leasehold Rights, Investment Properties, Property, Plant  and 
Equipment and Software Costs 
The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is an indication that real estate for 
sale and development, leasehold rights, investment properties, property, plant and equipment and software 
costs may be impaired.  If any such indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated 
recoverable amounts, the assets or cash-generating units (CGU) are written down to their estimated 
recoverable amounts.  The estimated recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of fair value less cost to 
sell and value in use.  The fair value less cost to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in 
an arm’s-length transaction less the costs of disposal while value in use is the present value of estimated 
future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of 
its useful life.  In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present 
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and 
the risks specific to the asset.  For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the 
estimated recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.  Impairment losses of 
continuing operations are recognized in the consolidated statement of income in those expense categories 
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consistent with the function of the impaired asset. 
 
A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed by a credit to current operations to the extent that it 
does not restate the asset to a carrying amount in excess of what would have been determined (net of any 
accumulated depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. 
 
Nonfinancial Other Current and Noncurrent Assets 
The Group provides allowance for impairment losses on nonfinancial other current and noncurrent assets 
when they can no longer be realized.  The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period would 
differ if the Group made different judgments or utilized different estimates.  An increase in allowance for 
impairment losses would increase recorded expenses and decrease other current and noncurrent assets. 
 
Recovery of impairment losses recognized in prior years is recorded when there is an indication that the 
impairment losses recognized for the asset no longer exist or have decreased.  The recovery is recorded in 
the consolidated statement of income.  However, the increased carrying amount of an asset due to a 
recovery of an impairment loss is recognized to the extent it does not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for that asset in prior years. 
 
Product Classification  
Insurance contracts are defined as those containing significant insurance risk at the inception of the 
contract, or those where at the inception of the contract, there is a scenario with commercial substance 
where the level of insurance risk may be significant over time.  The significance of insurance risk is 
dependent on both the probability of an insured event and the magnitude of its potential effect.  As a 
general guideline, the Group defines significant insurance risk by comparing benefits paid with benefits 
payable if the insured event did not occur.  Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it 
remains an insurance contract for the remainder of its lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces 
significantly during this period, unless all rights and obligations are extinguished or has expired.  
Investment contracts can however be reclassified as insurance contracts after inception if the insurance risk 
becomes significant. 
 
Recognition and Measurement  
a) Premium Revenue  

Premiums from short-duration insurance contracts are recognized as revenue over the period of the 
contracts using the 24th method, except for premiums arising from marine cargo where the provision 
for unearned premiums pertains to the premiums for the last two months of the year.  The portion of 
the premiums written that relates to the unexpired periods of the policies at financial reporting dates is 
accounted for as “Reserve for unearned premiums” and shown as part of “Accounts payable and 
accrued expenses” in the Liabilities section of the consolidated statements of financial position.  The 
related reinsurance premiums ceded that pertain to the unexpired  periods at financial  reporting  dates 
are accounted for as “Deferred reinsurance premiums” and shown under “Other noncurrent assets” in 
the Assets section of the consolidated statement of financial positions.  The net changes in these 
accounts between financial reporting dates are charged to or credited against income for the period.  

 
b) Insurance Contract Liabilities  

Insurance contract liabilities are recognized when contracts are entered into and premiums are charged.   
 

Provision for unearned premiums  
The proportion of written premiums, gross of commissions payable to intermediaries, attributable to 
subsequent periods is deferred as provision for unearned premiums using the  
24th method, except for the marine cargo’s last two months of the year.  The change in the provision 
for unearned premiums is taken to the consolidated statement of income in the order that revenue is 
recognized over the period of risk.  Further provisions are made to cover claims under unexpired 



- 17 - 
 
 

 

insurance contracts which may exceed the unearned premiums and the premiums due in respect of 
these contracts.  

  
Claims provision and incurred but not reported (IBNR) losses  
Outstanding claims provision are based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred but not 
settled at the financial reporting date, whether reported or not, together with related claims handling 
costs and reduction for the expected value of salvage and other recoveries.  Delays can be experienced 
in the notification and settlement of certain types of claims, therefore the ultimate cost of which cannot 
be known with certainty at the reporting date.  The liability is not discounted for the time value of 
money and includes IBNR losses.  No provision for equalization or catastrophic reserves is recognized.  
The liability is derecognized when the contract expires, is discharged or is cancelled.  

 
Liability adequacy test  
At each financial reporting date, liability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of 
insurance contract liabilities.  In performing the test, current best estimates of future cash flows, claims 
handling and policy administration expenses are used.  Any inadequacy is immediately charged to the 
statement of income by establishing an unexpired risk provision for losses arising from the liability 
adequacy tests.  

  
c) Reinsurance Assets  

The Group cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business.  Reinsurance assets represent 
balances due from reinsurance companies for ceded insurance liabilities.  Recoverable amounts are 
estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provisions and are in accordance with the 
reinsurance contract.    

 
An impairment review is performed on all reinsurance assets when an indication of impairment arises 
during the financial reporting period.  Impairment occurs when objective evidence exists that the 
Group may not recover outstanding amounts under the terms of the contract and when the impact on 
the amounts that the Group will receive from the reinsurer can be measured reliably.  The impairment 
loss is recorded in the consolidated statement of income.  

  
Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Group from its obligations to policyholders.  

  
The Group also assumes reinsurance risk in the normal course of business for insurance contracts when 
applicable.  Premiums and claims on assumed reinsurance are recognized as income and expense in the 
same manner as they would be if the reinsurance were considered direct business, taking into account 
the product classification of the reinsured business.   

 
Deferred Acquisition Costs 
Commission and other acquisition costs incurred during the financial reporting period that are related to 
securing new insurance contracts and/or renewing existing insurance contracts, but which relates to 
subsequent financial periods, are deferred to the extent that they are recoverable out of future revenue 
margins.  All other acquisition costs are recognized as an expense when incurred. 
 
Subsequent to initial recognition, these costs are amortized using the twenty-forth (24th) method except for 
marine cargo where the deferred acquisition costs pertain to the commissions for the last two (2) months of 
the year.  Amortization is charged to the consolidated statement of income.  The unamortized acquisition 
costs are shown as deferred acquisition cost under “other noncurrent assets. 
 
Rental and Other Deposits 
Customer rental and other deposits represent payment from tenants on leased properties which are 
refundable at the end of the lease contract. 
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Subscriptions Payable 
Subscriptions payable pertains to the Group’s unpaid subscription of shares of stock of other entities.  
These are recognized and carried in the books at the original subscription price in exchange of which, the 
shares of stock will be issued. 
 
Capital Stock 
Common shares are classified as equity. 
 
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net 
of tax, from the proceeds.  The excess of proceeds from issuance of shares over the par value of shares are 
credited to “Additional paid-in capital”. 

 
Deficit 
Deficit includes accumulated losses attributable to the Group’s equity holders. 
 
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) 
Other comprehensive income (loss) comprises items of income and expense (including items previously 
presented under the consolidated statement of changes in equity) that are not recognized in the 
consolidated statement of income for the year in accordance with PFRS. 
 
Revenue Recognition 
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group 
and the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when payment is made.  Revenue is 
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually 
defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty.  The Group assesses its revenue arrangements 
against specific criteria to determine if it is acting as  
principal or agent.  The Group has concluded that it is acting as principal in all of its revenue 
arrangements.  The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is 
recognized: 

 
Rental 
Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straight-line 
basis over the lease terms and included in revenue due to its operating nature. 
 
 
Merchandise sale - net  
Revenue from sale of merchandise is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of 
the goods have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. 

 
Insurance premiums and commissions 
Premiums from insurance contracts are recognized as revenue over the period of the contracts using the 
twenty-forth (24th) method.  The portion of the premiums written that relates to the unexpired periods of 
the policies at the end of the reporting period is accounted for as “Reserve for unearned premiums” 
included in the “Accounts payable and accrued expenses” account in the consolidated statement of 
financial position.  The related insurance premiums ceded that pertain to the unexpired periods at the end 
of the reporting period are accounted for as “Deferred reinsurance premiums” shown as part of “Other 
noncurrent assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position.  The net changes in these accounts 
between ends of the reporting periods are charged or credited to income for the period. 
 
Interest income 
For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and interest bearing financial assets classified as 
AFS financial assets, interest income or expense is recorded using the EIR, which is the rate that exactly 
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discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter 
period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. 

 
Dividend income 
Dividend income is recognized when the Group’s right to receive the payment is established. 
 
Cost and Expenses 
Cost and expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of outflows 
or decrease of assets or incurrence of liabilities that result in decrease in equity, other than those relating to 
distributions to equity participants.  Expenses are recognized in the consolidated statement of income in 
the period these are incurred. 
 
Earnings Per Share 
Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit for the year attributable to ordinary 
equity holders of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 
during the period. 
 
Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to ordinary equity 
holders of the Parent Company (after adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares) by the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average 
number of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares 
into ordinary shares. 
 
Retirement Benefits Costs 
The Group has a funded defined benefit retirement plan. 
 
The net defined benefit liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation at the end of the reporting period reduced by the fair value of plan assets (if any), adjusted for 
any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling.  The asset ceiling is the present value 
of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future 
contributions to the plan. 

 
The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is actuarially determined using the projected 
unit credit method.  This method reflects service rendered by employees to the date of valuation and 
incorporates assumptions concerning the employees’ projected salaries. 

 
Defined benefit costs comprise the following: 
 Service cost 
 Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset 
 Re-measurements of net defined benefit liability or asset 

 
Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on non-routine 
settlements are recognized as expense in profit or loss.  Past service costs are recognized when plan 
amendment or curtailment occurs. 

 
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net defined 
benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by applying the discount 
rate based on government bonds to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Net interest on the net defined 
benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense or income in profit or loss. 

 
Re-measurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in the effect 
of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined benefit liability) are recognized immediately in OCI 
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in the period in which they arise.  Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent 
periods.  

 
Plan assets are assets that are held by a long-term employee benefit fund or qualifying insurance policies.  
Plan assets are not available to the creditors of the Group, nor can they be paid directly to the Group.  Fair 
value of plan assets is based on market price information.  When no market price is available, the fair 
value of plan assets is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using a discount rate that 
reflects both the risk associated with the plan assets and the maturity or expected disposal date of those 
assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expected period until the settlement of the related obligations). 

 
The Group’s right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined benefit 
obligation is recognized as a separate asset at fair value when and only when reimbursement is virtually 
certain. 
 
The standard requires an entity to recognize short-term employee benefits when an employee has rendered 
service in exchange of those benefits. 

 
Leases 
Determination of Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease 
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the 
arrangement at inception date, whether fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific 
asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is not explicitly 
specified in an arrangement.  A reassessment is made after the inception of the lease only if one of the 
following applies: 

 
a. There is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement; 
b. A renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless the term of the renewal or extension was 

initially included in the lease term; 
c. There is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified asset; or 
d. There is a substantial change to the asset. 
 
Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the change 
in circumstances give rise to the reassessment for scenarios (a), (c) or (d) and at the date of renewal or 
extension period for scenario (b). 
 
Operating Lease Commitments - Group as a Lessor 
Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of an asset 
are classified as operating leases.  Rent income from operating leases are recognized as income on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term or based on the terms of the lease, as applicable.  Initial direct costs 
incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and 
recognized over the lease term on the basis as rental income.  Contingent rents are recognized as revenue 
in the period in which they are earned. 

 
Operating Lease Commitments - Group as a Lessee 
Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are 
classified as operating leases.  Lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are recognized as an 
expense in the consolidated statement of income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
 
Foreign Currency Translation 
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in Philippine peso based on the exchange rates 
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.  Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies are retranslated at the functional currency exchange rate at the end of the reporting period.  All 
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differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are taken to the consolidated statement 
of income.  Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are 
translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions.  Non-monetary items 
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the 
fair value is determined.  The gain or loss arising on retranslation of non-monetary items is treated in line 
with the recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value of the item. 
 
Income Taxes 
Current Income Tax 
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount 
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.  The income tax rates and income tax 
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted as at the end of the 
reporting period. 

 
Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the 
profit or loss in the consolidated statement of income.  Management periodically evaluates positions taken 
in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation 
and establishes provisions where appropriate.  

 
Deferred Income Tax 
Deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method on temporary differences between 
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the end 
of the reporting period. 

 
Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except: 

 
 when the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or 

liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects 
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and  

 in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and 
interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be 
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

 
Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward benefits 
of unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCO) and unused tax credits from excess minimum corporate 
income tax (MCIT), to the extent that it is probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available 
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused NOLCO and MCIT 
can be utilized, except: 
 
 when the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the 

initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the 
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and 
 

 in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates 
and interests in joint ventures, deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is 
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and sufficient future 
taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. 

 
The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each end of the reporting period and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available to 
allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.  Unrecognized deferred income tax assets 
are reassessed at each end of the reporting period and are recognized to the extent that it has become 
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probable that sufficient future taxable profits will allow the deferred income tax asset to be recovered. 
 
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the income tax rates that are expected to apply to 
the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on income tax rates (and income tax 
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at each end of the reporting period. 

 
Deferred income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss.  
Deferred income tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in the 
consolidated statement of comprehensive income or directly in equity. 
 
Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset if, and only if, a legally 
enforceable right exists to set off current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the 
deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on 
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend to either settle  
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities are 
expected to be settled or recovered.  Subsidiaries operating in the Philippines file income tax returns on an 
individual basis.  Thus, the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset on a per entity basis. 

 
Claims 
The liabilities for unpaid claim costs (including incurred but not reported losses) and claim adjustment 
expenses relating to insurance contracts are accrued when insured events occur.  The liabilities for unpaid 
claims are based on the estimated ultimate cost of settling the claims.  The method of determining such 
estimates and establishing reserves is continually reviewed and  
updated.  Changes in estimates of claim costs resulting from the continuous review process and differences 
between estimates and payments for claims are recognized as income or expense for  
the period in which the estimates are changed or payments are made.  Estimated recoveries on settled and 
unsettled claims are evaluated in terms of the estimated realizable values of the salvaged recoverables and 
deducted from the liability for unpaid claims.  The unpaid claim costs are accounted as Claims payable 
under “Accounts payable and accrued expenses” account in the consolidated statement of financial 
position. 

 
Provisions  
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  When the Group 
expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the 
reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.  The 
expense relating to any provision is presented in the consolidated statement of income, net of any 
reimbursement. 

 
Contingencies 
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements.  These are disclosed 
unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.  Contingent 
assets are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to 
consolidated financial statements when an inflow of economic benefit is probable. 

 
Segment Reporting 
The Group’s operating businesses are recognized and managed according to the nature of the products or 
services offered, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that serves different markets. 
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Segment revenue, expenses and performance include transfers between business segments.  The transfers 
are accounted for at competitive market prices charged to unaffiliated customers for similar products.  
Such transfers are eliminated in consolidation. 

 
Events After the End of the Reporting Period 
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group’s financial position at the end of 
the reporting period (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements.  Post year-end 
events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements when 
material. 
 
 

3. Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions 
 

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires the Group to 
make judgments and estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses 
and disclosure of contingent assets and contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.  Future 
events may occur which will cause the assumptions used in arriving at the estimates to change.  The effects 
of any change in judgments and estimates are reflected in the consolidated financial statements as they 
become reasonably determinable. 
Judgments, estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and 
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances.  However, actual outcome can differ from these estimates. 
 
Judgments 
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following 
judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts 
recognized in the consolidated financial statements: 
 
Determining Functional Currency 
Based on the economic substance of underlying circumstances relevant to the Group, the functional 
currency of the Group has been determined to be the Philippine peso.  The Philippine peso is the currency 
of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates and it is the currency that mainly 
influences the underlying transactions, events and conditions relevant to the Group. 
 
Determining Classification of Financial Instruments 
The Group classifies a financial instrument, or its component parts, on initial recognition as a financial 
asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual 
agreement and definitions of a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument.  The substance 
of a financial instrument, rather than its legal form, governs its classification in the consolidated statement 
of financial position. 

 
 

Determining Classification of Investment Properties  
The Group classifies its buildings and improvements and land and improvements either as investment 
property or owner-occupied property based on its current intentions where it will be used.  When buildings 
and improvements as well as land and improvements are held for capital appreciation or when 
management is still undecided as to its future use, it is classified as investment property.  Buildings and 
improvements and land and improvements which are held for rent are classified as investment properties. 
 
Assessing Operating Lease Commitments - Group as Lessor 
The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment properties portfolio.  The Group 
has determined that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties which 
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are leased out under operating lease arrangements. 
 

Assessing Operating Lease Commitments - Group as Lessee 
The Group has entered into a lease agreement for the corporate office space and a subsidiary’s mall 
operations.  The Group has determined that it does not obtain all the significant risks and rewards of 
ownership of the assets under operating lease arrangements. 

 
Estimates and Assumptions 
The key estimates and assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty 
at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.  The Group 
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements 
were prepared.  Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change 
due to market changes in circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group.  Such changes are 
reflected in the assumptions when they occur. 

 
Estimating Casualty Loss 
As a result of the fire which occurred on September 4, 2012, the Group, in its own initiative, made an 
assessment of the extent of the damages sustained on its individual assets, including receivables, 
investment properties and property and equipment.  The reassessment was conducted with the joint 
coordination of the Group’s engineering and operations group and other technical consultants, taking into 
consideration various factors such as assets’ net book values, restoration costs and usability as of the 
reassessment date.  Judgment by management was particularly employed when deciding whether an asset 
should be provided with full or partial allowance for losses.   
 
Management believes that the impairment assumptions are reasonable and appropriate and any differences 
in the actual casualty loss will impact the profit and loss during the period when the actual amounts are 
determined. 

 
Estimating Allowance for Impairment Losses on Receivables and Amounts Owed by  
 Related Parties 
The Group reviews its receivables and amounts owed by related parties at each end of the reporting period 
to assess whether a provision for impairment should be recorded in the consolidated statement of income.  
In particular, judgment by management is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future 
cash flows when determining the level of allowance required.  Such estimates are based on assumptions 
about a number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the allowance. 

 
For the receivables, the Group evaluates specific accounts where the Group has information that certain 
customers or third parties are unable to meet their financial obligations and considers cumulative 
assessment for the risk of the collectability of past due accounts.  Facts, such as the Group’s length of 
relationship with the customers or other parties and the customers’ or other parties’ current credit status, 
are considered to ascertain the amount of allowance that will be provided.  The allowances are evaluated 
and adjusted as additional information is received.  For the amounts owed by related parties, the Group 
uses judgment, based on the best available facts and circumstances, including but not limited to, 
assessment of the related parties’ operating activities (active or dormant), business viability and overall 
capacity to pay, in providing allowance against the recorded receivable amounts.   
 
Receivables amounted to P=794.6 million and P=873.3 million as at March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013, 
respectively, net of allowance for impairment losses amounting to P=140.9 million and P=308.9 million as at 
March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013, respectively (see Note 5). 
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Amounts owed by related parties amounted to P=0.02 million as at March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013, net 
of allowance for impairment losses amounting to P=1.6 million as at March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013.  
There is no provision for impairment losses on amounts owed by related parties in March 31, 2014 and 
2013 (see Note 18). 
 
Estimating Allowance for Inventory Losses 
The Group maintains an allowance for inventory losses.  The level of this allowance is evaluated by 
management on the basis of factors that affect the recoverability of the inventory.  These factors include, 
but are not limited to, the physical condition and location of inventories on hand, the fluctuations of price 
or cost directly relating to events occurring after the end of the period to the extent that such events 
confirm conditions existing at the end of the period, and the purpose for which the inventory item is held. 

 
Inventories amounted to P=20.6 million and P=34.8 million as at March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013, 
respectively, net of allowance for inventory losses amounting to P=97.9 million as at March 31, 2014 and 
June 30, 2013 (see Note 6). 

 
Estimating Allowance for Impairment Losses on Real Estate for Sale and Development  
The Group maintains an allowance for real estate for sale and development losses.  The level of this 
allowance is evaluated by management on the basis of factors that affect the recoverability of the real 
estate for sale and development.  These factors include, but are not limited to, the physical condition and 
location of real estate for sale and development, the fluctuations of price or cost directly relating to events 
occurring after the end of the period to the extent that such events confirm conditions existing at the end of 
the period, and the purpose for which the real estate for sale and development item is held. 

 
Real estate for sale and development amounted to P=429.5 million and P=280.2 million as at March 31, 2014 
and June 30, 2013, respectively.  No impairment losses were recognized in March 31, 2014 and 2013      
(see Note 7). 

 
Estimating Allowances for Impairment Losses of AFS Financial Assets 
The Group recognizes impairment losses on AFS financial assets when there has been a significant or 
prolonged decline in the fair value of such investments below its cost or where other objective evidence of 
impairment exists.  The determination of what is ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ requires judgment.  For 
equity instruments, when determining whether the decline in value is significant, the Group considers 
historical volatility of share price (i.e., the higher the historical volatility, the greater the decline in fair 
value before it is likely to be regarded as significant) and the period of time over which the share price has 
been depressed (i.e., a sudden decline is less significant than a sustained fall of the same magnitude over a 
longer period).  For debt instruments, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial assets 
carried at amortized cost.  However, the amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss measured 
as the difference between the amortized cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on the 
AFS financial assets previously recognized in the consolidated statement of income. 

 
Total allowance for impairment losses on AFS financial assets amounted to P=303.1 million and P=300.2 
million as at March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013, respectively.  The carrying amounts of the Group’s AFS 
financial assets are P=1,464.4 million and P=1,220.1 million as at March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013, 
respectively (see Note 8). 
 
Estimating Allowance for Impairment of HTM Investment 
The Group determines impairment of its HTM investment based on its evaluation of objective evidence of 
impairment which includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group such as, but not 
limited to, significant financial difficulty of the counterparty or the probability that the issuer will enter 
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization. 
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As at March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013, no impairment was recognized for the Group’s HTM investment.  
The carrying value of the Group’s HTM investment amounted to nil and P=2.0 million as at March 31, 2014 
and June 30, 2013, respectively (see Note 9). 
 
Estimating Allowance for Impairment Losses of Investments in Associates 
PFRS requires that an impairment review be performed when certain impairment indicators are present.  
Determining the fair value of investments in associates, which requires the determination of future cash 
flows expected to be generated from the continued use and ultimate disposition of such asset, requires the 
Group to make estimates and assumptions that can materially affect its consolidated financial statements.  
Future events could cause the Group to conclude that the investment is impaired.  Any resulting 
impairment loss could have a material adverse impact on the consolidated statement of financial position 
and consolidated statement of income.   

 
Investments in associates amounted to P=2.6 million as at March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013 (see Note 11).  
No impairment losses on investments in associates were recognized as at March 31, 2014 and 2013. 
 
Estimating Useful Lives of Leasehold Rights, Investment Properties, Property, Plant and  Equipment and 
Software Costs 
The estimated useful lives used as bases for depreciating and amortizing the Group’s leasehold rights, 
investment properties, property, plant and equipment and software costs were determined on the basis of 
management’s assessment of the period within which the benefits of these asset items are expected to be 
realized taking into account actual historical information on the use of such assets as well as industry 
standards and averages applicable to the Group’s assets.  
 
The Group estimates the useful lives of its leasehold rights, investment properties, property, plant and 
equipment and software costs based on the period over which the assets are expected to be available for 
use.  The estimated useful lives of leasehold rights, investment properties, property, plant and equipment 
and software costs are reviewed, at least, annually and are updated if expectations differ from previous 
estimates due to physical wear and tear and technical or commercial obsolescence on the use of these 
assets.  It is possible that future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in these 
estimates brought about by changes in the factors mentioned above.  A reduction in the estimated useful 
lives of rights, property, investment properties, leasehold plant and equipment and software costs would 
increase depreciation and amortization and decrease in leasehold rights, investment properties, property, 
plant and equipment and software costs. 

 
The carrying value of leasehold rights amounted to P=1.1 million and P=4.2 million as at March 31, 2014  
and June 30, 2013, respectively (see Note 23). 
 
The carrying value of investment properties amounted to P=743.3 million and P=754.6 million as at  
March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013, respectively (see Note 12). 

 
The carrying value of property, plant and equipment amounted to P=681.2 million and P=705.0 million  
as at March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013, respectively (see Note 13).   

  
The carrying value of software costs amounted to P=7.4 million and P=7.9 million as at March 31, 2014  
and June 30, 2013, respectively (see Note 14). 

 
Estimating Allowance for Impairment Losses of Investment Properties 
PFRS requires that an impairment review be performed when certain impairment indicators are present.  
Determining the value of investment properties which requires the determination of future cash flows 
expected to be generated from the continued use and ultimate disposition of such assets, requires the 
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Group to make estimates and assumptions that can materially affect its consolidated financial statements.  
Future events could cause the Group to conclude that this asset may not be recoverable.  Any resulting 
impairment loss could have a material adverse impact on financial condition and results of operations of 
the Group. 
 
No provision for impairment losses on investment properties was recognized as at March 31, 2014 and 
2013.  Total allowance for impairment losses on investment properties amounted P=6.6 million as at  
March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013.  The carrying value of investment properties amounted to 
 P=743.3 million and P=754.6 million as at March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013, respectively (see Note 12). 

 
Estimating Allowance for Impairment Losses of Property, Plant and Equipment, Leasehold Rights and 
Software Costs 
The Group assesses impairment of property, plant and equipment, leasehold rights and software costs 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be 
recoverable.  The factors that the Group considers important which could trigger an impairment review 
include the following: 

 
 significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results; 

 significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall business; and 

 significant negative industry or economic trends. 
 
In determining the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to be generated from the 
continued use of the assets, the Group is required to make estimates and assumptions that can materially 
affect the consolidated financial statements. 

 
These assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount may not be recoverable.  An impairment loss would be recognized whenever evidence 
exists that the carrying value is not recoverable.  For purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped 
at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows. 

 
An impairment loss is recognized and charged to earnings if the discounted expected future cash flows are 
less than the carrying amount.  Fair value is estimated by discounting the expected future cash flows using 
a discount factor that reflects the risk-free rate of interest for a term consistent with the period of expected 
cash flows. 

 
Estimating Allowance for Impairment Losses on Other Current and Noncurrent Assets 
The Group provides allowance for losses on other current and noncurrent assets when they can no longer 
be realized.  The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period would differ if the Group made 
different judgments or utilized different estimates.  An increase in allowance for losses would increase 
recorded expenses and decrease other current and noncurrent assets. 
 

As at March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013, the carrying value of other current assets amounted to                 
P=220.4 million and P=205.0 million, respectively, net of allowance for impairment losses amounting to        
P=2.9 million as at March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013 (see Note 10).   

 
As at March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013, the carrying value of other noncurrent assets amounted to            
P=107.1 million and P=108.0 million, respectively (see Note 15).  There were no provision for impairment 
losses recognized as at March 31, 2014 and 2013 (see Note 15).   
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Claims liability arising from insurance contracts  
Estimates have to be made both for the expected ultimate cost of claims reported at the financial reporting 
period and for the expected ultimate cost of the IBNR claims as of financial reporting period.  It can take a 
significant period of time before the ultimate claim costs can be established with certainty.  The primary 
technique adopted by management in estimating the cost of notified and IBNR claims is that of using past 
claims settlement trends to predict future claims settlement trends.  At each financial reporting period, 
prior period claims estimates are assessed for adequacy and changes made are charged to current period 
provision.  
  
The carrying values of claims payable amounted to P=301.9 million and P=594.6 million as at  
March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013, respectively (See Note 16).  
 
Determining Present Value of Retirement Benefits Costs 
The determination of the Group’s retirement benefits liability and retirement benefit costs is dependent on 
the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in calculating such amounts. The actuarial valuation 
involves making various assumptions.  These include the determination of the discount rates, future salary 
increases, mortality rates and future pension increases.  Due to the complexity of the valuation, the 
underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, defined benefit obligations are highly sensitive to 
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting period.  While the Group 
believes that the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant differences between actual 
experiences and assumptions may materially affect the Group’s accrued retirement benefits liability and 
annual retirement benefit costs. 
 
Retirement benefits liability amounted to P=89.7 million and P=134.0 million as at March 31, 2014 and     
June 30, 2013, respectively.  Retirement benefits costs amounted to P=17.8 million and P=3.8 million as at 
March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively (see Note 19 and 20).   

 
Assessing Realizability of Deferred Income Tax Assets 
The Group reviews the carrying amounts of deferred income tax assets at each end of the reporting period 
and reduces it to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be 
available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized.  Significant judgment is 
required to determine the amount of deferred income tax assets that can be recognized based upon the 
likely timing and level of future taxable income together with future planning strategies.   However, there 
is no assurance that the Group will generate sufficient future taxable profits to allow all or part of its 
deferred income tax assets to be utilized. 

 
Estimating Contingencies 
The Group is currently involved in various legal proceedings.  The estimate of the probable costs for the 
resolution of these claims has been developed in consultation with inside and outside legal counsel 
handling the defense in these matters and is based upon the analysis of potential results.  It is possible, 
however, that future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in estimates or in the 
effectiveness of the strategies relating to these proceedings. 

 
Estimating Fair Values of Financial Instruments 
Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated statement of 
financial position cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using valuation techniques 
including the discounted cash flows model.  The inputs to these models are  
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment  
is required in establishing fair values.  The judgments include considerations of inputs such as  
liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.  Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the 
reported fair value of financial instruments.  Any change in the fair value of these financial instruments 
would directly affect the consolidated statement of income and consolidated statement of changes in 
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equity. 
 

Fair values of financial assets as at March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013 amounted to P=2,577.2 million and    
P=2,759.3 million, respectively, while the fair values of financial liabilities as at March 31, 2014 and       
June 30, 2013 amounted to P=1,439.9 million and P=1,717.0 million, respectively (see Note 26). 
 
 

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 

 March 31, 2014 June 30, 2013
 (In Thousands) 
Cash on hand and in banks P=120,409 P=99,869 
Short-term investments 198,021 563,952 
 P=318,429 P=663,821 

 
Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates.  Short-term investments are made for 
varying periods of up to three (3) months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group and 
earn interest at the respective short-term investment rates. 

 
 

5. Receivables  
 

 March 31, 2014 June 30, 2013
 (In Thousands) 
Trade debtors P=124,193 P=156,644 
Insurance receivables  738,460 777,917 
Others 72,843 247,604 
 935,496 1,182,165 
Less allowance for impairment losses 140,907 308,873 
 P=794,589 P=873,292 

 
Trade debtors are both interest and non-interest bearing and are generally collectible on thirty (30) days’ 
term.  The interest rates used ranges from 5% to 10% per annum. 
 
Insurance receivables consist of premiums receivable, due from ceding companies, reinsurance recoverable 
on paid and unpaid losses - facultative, funds held by ceding companies and reinsurance accounts 
receivables and are generally on 60 to 180 days’ term. 
 
Other receivables include noninterest-bearing receivables of OLI from Cosco Land Corporation (CLC) 
which are due and demandable amounting to P=167.8 million as at June 30, 2013.  The receivables from 
CLC are fully provided with allowance. As of March 31, 2014, the receivables were written off.  

 
Advances to suppliers and contractors, advances to officers and employees and interest receivables also 
form part of other receivables.  These are non-interest bearing and are generally collectible on demand. 
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Allowance for impairment pertains to specific and collective assessment.  The movements of allowance for 
impairment losses on receivables are as follows: 

 

 
Trade 

debtors 
Insurance 

receivables Others Total 
 (In Thousands) 
At June 30, 2013 P=90,617 P=7,576 P=210,680 P=308,873 
Provisions (reversal) during the period 

(Note 19) (673) 765 (168,058) (167,966) 
At March 31, 2014 P=89,944 P=8,341 P=42,622 P=140,907 

 
 

6. Inventories 
 

 March 31, 2014 June 30, 2013
 (In Thousands) 
At NRV:   
 Finished goods  P=17,825 P=31,908 
 Factory supplies and spare parts 2,791 2,902 
 P=20,616 P=34,810 

 
Movements in the allowance for inventory losses are as follows: 
 

   March 31, 2014 June 30, 2013 
                                  (In Thousands) 
Balances at beginning of year  P=97,892 P=33,526 
Provisions during the period  – 70,952 
Recovery during the period  – (6,586) 
Balances at end of period   P=97,892 P=97,892 

 
 
7. Real Estate Held for Sale and Development 
 

 March 31, 2014 June 30, 2013 
                 (In Thousands) 
Land for development  P=395,499 P=246,181 
Land for sale  33,998 33,998 
 P=429,497 P=280,179 

 
Batangas and Calamba lands pertains to real estate held for sale, the composition of cost as at  
March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013 are as follows: 

 
 March 31,  2014 June 30, 2013
Land cost P=277,680 P=130,472 
Construction overhead and other related costs 97,107 94,997 
Professional fees 17,932 17,932 
Taxes 2,780 2,780 
 P=395,499 P=246,181 

 
Homelands pertain to land held for development which is located in Calamba, Laguna. 
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Movements in the real estate held for sale and development are as follows: 
 

 March 31, 2014 June 30, 2013
Balances at beginning of the period P=280,179 P=279,120 
Additions 149,318 141 
Repossessions – 918 
Balances at end of the period P=429,497 P=280,179 

 
Additions pertain to acquisition of land in San Vicente, Palawan, taxes, construction overhead and other 
related costs incurred during the period. 
 
Repossessions pertain to the cost of repossessed land held for sale located in Calamba, Laguna due to the 
delinquent payment from land buyers. 

 
 
8. AFS Financial Assets 
 

 
March 31, 

2014 June 30, 2013 
 (In Thousands) 
Listed equity securities - net of allowance for  impairment 
losses amounting to P=294.1 million and to P=291.5 million as 
at March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013, respectively P=1,035,129 P=1,007,720 
Quoted debt securities 402,695 175,428 
Unquoted debt securities 3,672 5,700 
Nonlisted equity securities  23,271 31,282 
 P=1,464,767 P=1,220,130 

 
AFS financial assets in quoted shares of stock are carried at fair value with cumulative changes in fair 
values presented as a separate account in equity.  Meanwhile, unquoted debt and nonlisted equity AFS 
financial assets are based on latest available transaction price at the end of the reporting period. 
 
As at March 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group sold certain listed equity securities and recognized a gain on 
sale of P=7.3 million and P=142.0 million, respectively. 

 
Certain AFS financial assets are reserved investments in accordance with the provisions of the Insurance 
Code as security for the benefit of policy holders and creditors of the FPIC. 

 
 
9. HTM Investments 
 

HTM investments at amortized cost amounted to nil and P=2.0 as at March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013, 
respectively.   

 
HTM investments are reserved investments in accordance with the provisions of the Insurance Code as 
security for the benefit of policy holders and creditors of the FPIC. 
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10. Other Current Assets 
 

 March 31, 2014 June 30, 2013
 (In Thousands) 
CWTs P=190,908 P=175,421 
Input VAT  31,152 30,298 
Prepayments 1,185 2,253 
 223,245 207,972 
Less allowance for impairment losses 2,889 2,970 
 P=220,356 P=205,002 

 
Prepayments pertain to prepaid insurance, taxes and licenses and other prepaid expenses that are to be 
amortized over a period of one (1) year.  
 
Movements in the allowance for impairment losses are as follows: 
 

  March 31, 2014 June 30, 2013 
  (In Thousands) 
Balances at beginning of the period  P=2,970 P=6,239 
Provisions   6 193 
Write-off   (87) (3,462) 
Balances at end of the period  P=2,889 P=2,970 

 
 
 
11. Investments in Associate 
 

 March 31, 2014 June 30, 2013
(In Thousands) 

Acquisition costs:   
 Balances at beginning of the period P=5,959 P=1,416,101 
 Additions − 15,666 
 Reclassification  − (1,425,808)
 Balances at end of the period 5,959 5,959 
Accumulated equity in net losses of associates: 

Balances at beginning of the period (P=3,371) (P=160,052)
 Equity in net income of associates − 32 
 Reclassification  − 156,649 
 Balances at end of the period (3,371) (3,371)
 P=2,588 P=2,588 

 
Movement of allowance for impairment follows: 
 

  March 31, 2014 June 30, 2013 
  (In Thousands) 
Balances at beginning of the 

period  P=− P=725,023 
Reclassification during the period  − (725,023) 
Balances at end of the period  P=− P=− 
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On November 13, 2012, the SEC approved the conversion of debt to equity of Cyber Bay resulting to a 
change in percentage ownership of POPI from 22.28% to 17.95%.  The management assessed that the 
Group ceased to have significant influence over Cyber Bay.  As a result of the reduction in the ownership 
interest and loss of significant influence, the investment in Cyber Bay was reclassified to AFS financial 
asset starting November 13, 2012.   

 
 
12. Investment Properties 
 

As at March 31, 2014 
 

 
Buildings and 
Improvements 

Land and 
Improvements Total 

 (In Thousands) 
Cost    
 At beginning of year P=2,167,397 P=131,624 P=2,299,021 
 Additions 46,203 – 46,203 
 Reclassification (33,428) – (33,428) 
At end of period  2,180,173 131,624 2,311,797 
    
Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization    
 At beginning of year P=1,537,382 P=414 P=1,537,796 
 Depreciation and amortization  
  (Note 19) 23,951 103 24,054 
At end of period 1,561,333 517 1,561,850 
 618,840 131,107 749,947 

Less: Allowance for impairment  losses (6,621) 
 

– (6,621) 
Net Book Value P=612,219 P=131,107 P=743,325 

 
 

As at June 30, 2013 
 

 
Buildings and 
Improvements 

Land and 
Improvements Total 

 (In Thousands) 
Cost    
 At beginning of year P=2,187,055 P=131,624 P=2,318,679 
 Additions 58,486 – 58,486 
 Write-off (78,144) – (78,144) 
At end of the period 2,167,397 131,624 2,299,021 
    
Accumulated Depreciation and 

Amortization    
 At beginning of year P=1,528,556 P=276 P=1,528,832 
 Depreciation and amortization 30,511 138 30,649 
 Write-off  (21,685) – (21,685) 
At end of the period 1,537,382 414 1,537,796 
 630,015 131,210 761,225 
Less: Allowance for impairment 

 losses (6,621) 
 

– (6,621) 
Net Book Value P=623,394 P=131,210 P=754,604 
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Investment properties of TPI substantially represent leasehold improvements on the land leased from 
Philippine National Railways (PNR) which are utilized in TPI’s office space, mall operations and held for 
rentals.  Upon adoption of PAS 40, Investment Property, upon its transition in 2005, TPI chose the cost 
model and continues to carry these investment properties at deemed cost using their revalued amount as 
allowed under PFRS.   
 
In accordance with the general requirement under PFRS 1, the Group closed out the “Revaluation 
Reserve” on investment properties account amounting to retained earnings which pertains to the remaining 
balance of the deemed cost adjustment on investment properties account which arose when the Group 
transitioned to PFRS in 2005.   
 

 
13. Property, Plant and Equipment 
 

As at March 31, 2014 
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As at June 30, 2013 

 
Leasehold 

Improvements 

Machinery 
and 

Equipment 
Transportation 

Equipment 

Furniture, 
Fixtures and 

Equipment 

Condominium 
Units and 

Improvements 
Hotel 

 Equipment Total 
  (In Thousands) 

Cost     
At beginning of year P=21,415 P=2,090,733 P=44,026 P=84,083 P=8,692 P=1,063 P=2,250,013 
Additions 439 2,039 3,573 4,768 – 6,099 16,918 
Disposals –  – (8,936) (382) – – (9,318) 
Retirements (9,963) – – (411) – – (10,374) 
Write-off – (1,614) – (887) – – (2,501) 
Reclassification – (17) – (138) – 155 – 
At end of the period 11,891 2,091,141 38,663 87,033 8,692 7,317 2,244,738 
Accumulated Depreciation 

and Amortization        
At beginning of year 16,213 2,055,838 34,635 77,089 3,970 – 2,187,744 
Depreciation and 

amortization  66 5,521 3,504 4,208 217 1,402 14,918 
Disposals – – (8,936) (382) – – (9,318) 
Retirements (9,963) – – (402) – – (10,365) 
Write-off – (1,561) – (773) – – (2,334) 
At end of the period 6,316 2,059,798 29,203 79,740 4,187 1,402 2,180,645 
Net Book Values  P=5,575 P=31,343 P=9,460 P=7,293 P=4,505 P=5,915 P=64,093 

 
 

 
Land and 

Improvements 
Buildings and 

 Improvements Total 
 (In Thousands) 
At revalued amounts:    
 At beginning of year P=339,662 P=686,255 P=1,025,917 
 Revaluation (1,193) 1,334 141 

At end of the period 338,469 687,589 1,026,058 
Accumulated depreciation and 

amortization 
   

 At beginning of year 17,069 340,758 357,827 

 Depreciation and amortization   
 

776 
 

25,861 
 

26,637 
 Revaluation – 712 712 

At end of the period 17,845 367,331 385,176 
Net book values P=320,624 P=320,258 P=640,882 

 
 
Certain items of property, plant and equipment identified as idle and included under machinery and 
equipment were written down to their estimated recoverable amounts. 

 
The fair value of land and improvements and buildings and improvements, which has been determined 
based on the latest valuations performed by Asian Appraisal Company, Inc. dated July 23, 2013, exceeds 
its carrying cost.  Asian Appraisal Company, Inc. is an industry specialist in valuing these types of 
properties.  
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14. Software Costs 

 
 March 31, 2014 June 30, 2013

 (In Thousands) 
At cost:   
 Beginning balances P=28,645  P=25,551  
 Additions 1,991 3,094 
 Ending balances 30,636 28,645 
 
Accumulated amortization:   
 Beginning balances 20,752 17,045 
 Amortization (Note 19) 2,454 3,707 
 Ending balances 23,206 20,752 
Net book values at cost P=7,430 P=7,893 

 
 
15. Other Noncurrent Assets 
 

 March 31, 2014 June 30, 2013
 (In Thousands) 
Deferred reinsurance premiums P=15,421 P=33,338
Rental deposits (Note 23) 34,511 30,161
Deferred acquisition cost 25,674 20,649
Deferred input value added tax 10,047 10,929
Prepaid expenses 12,585 5,415
Others 8,846 7,521
 P=107,084 P=108,013

 
 
Deferred reinsurance premiums pertain to the unexpired periods of the reinsurance premiums ceded           
at the end of the reporting period.   
 
Rental deposits include rental and security deposits paid which are refundable at the end of the contract.   
 
Deferred acquisition cost pertains to the unamortized acquisition costs incurred during the period that are 
related to securing new insurance contracts and or renewing existing insurance contracts.  
 
Deferred input VAT arises from the purchase of services on credit by the Group which is not yet paid as at 
end of the period.   

 
Prepaid expenses are comprised of advances to insurance companies for personal accident, term life and 
fire and deposits to lessors which shall be applied in the future.   
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16. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 
 

 March 31, 2014 June 30, 2013
 (In Thousands) 
Trade payables P=48,185 P=45,830 
Claims payables 301,924 594,620 
Accrued expenses 109,650 127,777 
Reserve for unearned premiums 103,400 122,655 
Nontrade payables  67,137 69,801 
Due to reinsurers and ceding companies  36,028 29,899 
Others 83,255 73,369 
 P=749,579 P=1,063,951 

 
Claims payables pertain to the estimated ultimate cost of incurred but not settled claims as at the reporting 
period. 
 
 
Reserve for unearned premiums relates to the portion of the premiums for unexpired periods. 
 
Due to reinsurers and ceding companies refers to the balance of premium and claims with respect to 
accepted and ceded reinsurance agreement whether directly or through brokers. 
 
The terms and conditions of the above payables are as follows: 

 
 Trade payables and accrued expenses are noninterest-bearing and are normally settled on thirty (30) 

days’ term. 
 

 All other payables are noninterest-bearing and have an average term of one (1) year. 
 
 
17. Rental and Other Deposits 

 
 March 31, 2014 June 30, 2013
 (In Thousands) 
Rental deposits (Note 23) P=97,981 P=91,931 
Security deposits (Note 23) 89,342 87,875 
Construction bond 7,943 7,752 
Customer deposits 5,664 3,860 
Other deposits 7,716 7,741 
 P=208,646 P=199,159 

 
Deposits include rental, security, customer, construction bond and other deposits paid by tenants to the 
Group on the leased properties which are refundable at the end of the contract. 

 
 

18. Related Party Transactions 
 

Related party relationship exists when one party has the ability to control, directly or indirectly through 
one or more intermediaries, the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making 
financial and operating decisions.  Such relationship also exists between and/or among entities, which are 
under common control with the reporting enterprises and its key management personnel, directors or its 
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stockholders.  In considering each related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the 
relationship, and not merely the legal form. 
 
The Parent Company and its subsidiaries, in their normal course of business, have entered into transactions 
with related parties principally consisting of noninterest-bearing advances with no fixed repayment terms 
and are due and demandable. 

 
Account balances with related parties, other than intra-group balances which are eliminated in 
consolidation, are as follows: 

  

Category 
Amount/
Volume

Outstanding 
Balance 

 
Terms 

 
Conditions 

 (In Thousands)   
Amounts owed by related parties:    
 Under common control     
 Guoman Philippines, Inc. 

March 31, 2014 (1) 1,624 
 
 

Demandable and 
collectible on 

demand 

Unsecured, non-
interest bearing, 
with impairment of 
P=1,610, and 
unguaranteed 

 
 

June 30, 2013 – 1,625 
 

 Genez Investments Corp. 
 

March 31, 2014 – 6 
 

Demandable and 
collectible on 

demand 

Unsecured, non-
interest bearing, no 
impairment, and 
unguaranteed 

 
June 30, 2013 – 6 

 

 Hong Way Holdings, Inc. 
 

March 31, 2014 (1) 2 
 

Demandable and 
collectible on 

demand 

Unsecured, non-
interest bearing, no 
impairment, and 
unguaranteed 

 
June 30, 2013 – 3 

Total March 31, 2014 (P=2) P=1,632   
Total June 30, 2013 P=– P=1,634   

 

 
 

 March 31, 2014 June 30, 2013 
    (In Thousands) 
Amounts owed by related parties P=1,632 P=1,634 
Less allowance for impairment losses 1,610 1,610 
 P=22 P=24 

 
 
Movements of allowance for impairment losses on amounts owed by related parties are as follows: 

 

  
 

March 31, 2014 June 30, 2013 
  (In Thousands) 
Balances at beginning of year  P=1,610 P=87,995 
Reversal during the period  – (62,462) 
Write-off during the period  – (257) 
Reclassification (Note 5)  – (23,666) 
Balances at end of period  P=1,610 P=1,610 
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This assessment is undertaken at each financial year-end by examining the financial position of the related 
parties and the market in which the related parties operate. 
 

Category 

Amount
/ 

Volume 
Outstanding 

Balance Terms 
 

Conditions 
Amounts owed to related parties:    
 Under common control    
 

 OYL Overseas, Limited 
 

March 31, 2014 P=– P=- Demandable and 
payable on demand

Unsecured, non-
interest bearing, 
and 
unguaranteed 

 
June 30, 2013 P=– P=2,673 

 
 
19. Operating Expenses 
 

 
 
Others consist mainly of various charges that are individually immaterial. 
 

 
20. Retirement Plan 
 

The Group has a funded, noncontributory retirement plan covering all its regular employees.  The plan 
provides for retirement, separation, disability and death benefits to its members.  The normal retirement 
benefit is based on a percentage of the employees’ final monthly salary for every year of credited service. 
 
The Amendment to PAS 19 has been applied retrospectively from July 1, 2012. The Group reviewed its 
existing employee benefits and determined that the amended standard has a significant impact on its 
accounting for retirement benefits. The Group will obtain the services of an external actuary to compute 
the impact to the financial statements upon adoption of the standard. 
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 The effects as at June 30, 2013 and March 31, 2013 are detailed below: 
 

  
 

The effects of the revisions to the Group’s consolidated statement of income are presented below: 
 

  
 
 
21. Earnings Per Share  
 

The following table presents information necessary to calculate basic earnings per share: 
 

  March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
a. Net income attributable to 

 equity holders of the Parent   P=214,098 P=500,602
b. Weighted average number of  

 shares  2,367,149 2,367,149

Basic earnings per share (a/b)  P=0.0904 P=0.2115
 
 

22. Segment Information 
 

Business Segments 
The Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of 
services provided and the different markets served, with each segment representing a strategic business 
unit. 

 
The industry segments where the Parent Company and its subsidiaries and associates operate are as 
follows: 

 
 Holding company 

 
  Financial services - insurance and related brokerage 
 
  Real estate - property development 
 
  Manufacturing and distribution - manufacture and distribution of beverage and ceramic tiles 
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Financial information about the operations of these business segments is summarized as follows: 
 
 

 
Holding 

Company 

Real Estate 
and Property 
Development 

Financial 
Services 

Manufacturing 
and 

Distribution Total 
 (In Thousands) 
 
As at March 31, 2014 
Revenue P=2,139 P=442,054 P=169,344 P=15,594 P=629,131 
Net income (loss) (17,241) 322,560 (29,016) (70,245) 206,058 
Depreciation and 
 amortization 573 33,882 2,188 24,385 61,028 
 
March 31, 2014 
Total assets 1,022,833 1,873,944 1,083,464 810,769 4,791,010 
Capital expenditures 259 1,409 534 5,443 7,645 
Investment in associates – – 2,588 – 2,588 
Total liabilities 525,865 583,723 513,792 132,956 1,756,336 
      

 
 

 
Holding 

Company 

Real Estate 
and Property 
Development 

Financial 
Services 

Manufacturing 
and 

Distribution Total 
 (In Thousands) 
March 31, 2013 
Revenue P=– P=453,482 P=166,741 P=221,426 P=841,649 
Net income (loss) (9,373) 142,662 (3,796) 369,904 499,397 
Depreciation and 
 amortization 834 34,803 2,466 24,566 62,669 
 
June 30, 2013 
Total assets 1,010,079 1,821,471 1,153,093 876,927 4,861,570 
Capital expenditures 641 15,089 644 3,638 20,012 
Investment in associates – – 2,588 – 2,588 
Total liabilities 544,597 521,648 825,614 137,798 2,029,657 

 
Geographical Segments 

 The Group does not have geographical segments. 
 
 
 

23. Long-term Lease 
 

On August 28, 1990, TPI, a subsidiary, through a deed of assignment, acquired all the rights, titles, 
interests and obligations of Gotesco Investment, Inc. on a contract of lease of the land owned by PNR for 
the Tutuban Terminal and where the TPI’s mall is located.  The contract provided for a payment of a 
guaranteed minimum annual rental plus a certain percentage of gross sales.  The lease covers a period of 
twenty five (25) years until 2014 and is automatically renewable for another twenty five (25) years subject 
to compliance with the terms and conditions of the lease agreement.  
 
On December 22, 2009, TPI renewed its lease contract with PNR for another twenty five (25) years 
beginning September 5, 2014, the end of the original lease agreement.  Rent expense charged to operations 
amounted to P=54.1 million and P=53.7 million as at March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.   
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As at March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013, the aggregate annual commitments on these existing lease 
agreements for the succeeding years are as follows: 

 
 March 31, 2014 June 30, 2013
 (In Thousands) 
Less than one (1) year P=112,607 P=109,982 
More than (one) 1 year but not more than  
 (five) 5 years 

 
626,810 

 
612,035 

More than (five) 5 years 3,204,793 3,304,023 
 P=3,944,210 P=4,026,040 

 
 

Leasehold rights pertaining to the leased property has a book value of P=2.1 million and P=4.2 million as at 
March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013, respectively.  Movements in the carrying value of the rights are 
presented below. 

 
 March 31, 2014 June 30, 2013
 (In Thousands) 
Beginning balances P=4,239 P=13,165 
Amortization (Note 19) (3,179) (8,926) 
Net book values P=1,060 P=4,239 

 
Group as a Lessor 

 The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its buildings.  These leases have remaining 
terms of one (1) year to less than five (5) years.  Renewals are subject to the mutual consent of the lessor 
and the lessee.  

 
 Tenants are required to post security deposits, which shall be refunded, without interest, within sixty (60) 

days after the expiration of the lease period, deducting the amount of damages to the leased premises, if 
any.   

 
 
24. Contingencies 
 

The Group is contingently liable for lawsuits or claims, and assessments, which are either pending decision 
by the courts or under negotiation.  Management and its legal counsels believe that the eventual outcome 
of these lawsuits or claims will not have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.  It is 
possible, however, that future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in the estimates 
or in the effectiveness of the strategies relating to these proceedings. 
 
 

25. Financial Risk Management Objectives, Policies and Capital Management 
 

The Group has various financial instruments such as cash and cash equivalents, receivables, amounts owed 
by / to related parties, AFS financial assets, HTM investments and subscriptions payable.  The main 
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise funds and maintain continuity of funding and financial 
flexibility for the Group.  The Group has other financial liabilities such as accounts payable and accrued 
expenses and rental and other deposits, which arise directly from its operations. 
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The main risks from the use of financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk, 
equity price risk and interest rate risk.  The Group’s BOD reviews and approves policies for managing 
these risks as summarized below. 

 
Credit Risk 
The Group’s credit risk originates from the potential loss arising from any failure by counterparties to 
fulfill their obligations, as and when they fall due. 

 
The Group trades only with recognized, reputable and creditworthy third parties and/or transacts only with 
institutions and/or banks which have demonstrated financial soundness.  It is the Group’s policy that all 
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. 
 
The Group’s gross maximum exposure to credit risk of its financial assets, which mainly comprise of cash, 
excluding cash on hand, receivables, amounts owed by related parties, AFS investments and HTM 
investments arises from default of the counterparty which has a maximum exposure equal to the carrying 
amount of these instruments at reporting date. 
 
Credit quality of neither past due nor impaired financial asset 
The credit quality of financial assets is being managed by the Group by grouping its financial assets into 
two: (a) High grade financial assets are those that are current and collectible;  
(b) Standard grade financial assets need to be consistently followed up but are still collectible. 
 
The tables below show the credit quality by class of financial assets based on the Group’s credit rating 
system: 

 
March 31, 2014 
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June 30, 2013 
 Neither past due nor impaired Past due or  

 High grade Standard grade 
individually 

impaired Total 
 (In Thousands) 
Loans and Receivables:     
Cash and cash equivalents P=663,221 P=– P=– P=663,221 
Receivables:     
 Trade debtors 23,043 34,647 98,954 156,644 
 Insurance receivables 679,433 31,194 67,290 777,917 
 Others 30,830 2,567 214,207 247,604 
Amounts owed by related parties 24 – 1,610 1,634 
AFS Financial Assets:     
 Listed equity securities 1,007,720 – 291,501 1,299,221 
 Quoted debt securities 175,428 – – 175,428 
 Unquoted debt securities 5,700 – – 5,700 
 Nonlisted equity securities 31,282 – – 31,282 
HTM Investments 2,000 – – 2,000 
 P=2,618,681 P=68,408 P=673,562 P=3,360,651 

 

 
The tables below show the aging analyses of financial assets per class that the Group held as at           
March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013.  A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make 
payment when contractually due. 
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June 30, 2013 Neither past Past due but not impaired 

 
due nor 

impaired 
Less than 

30 days 
31 to 60 

days 
61 to 90 

days 
Over  

90 days 
Individually 

impaired 
 

Total 
(In Thousands) 

Loans and Receivables:       
Cash and cash equivalents P=663,221 P=– P=– P=– P=– P=– P=663,221 
Receivables:        
 Trade debtors 57,690 – 2,882 1,057 4,398 90,617 156,644 
 Insurance receivables 710,627 12,836 8,010 4,882 33,986 7,576 777,917 
 Others 33,397 – – – 3,527 210,680 247,604 
Amounts owed by 

related parties 24 – – – – 1,610 1,634 
AFS Financial Assets:        
 Listed equity securities 1,007,720 – – – – 291,501 1,299,221 
 Quoted debt securities 175,428 – – – – – 175,428 
 Unquoted debt 

 securities 5,700 – – – – – 5,700 
 Nonlisted equity 

 securities 31,282 – – – – – 31,282 
HTM Investments 2,000 – – – – – 2,000 
 P=2,687,089 P=12,836 P=10,892 P=5,939 P=41,911 P=601,984 P=3,360,651 

 
Liquidity Risk 
Liquidity risk arises when there is a shortage of funds and the Group as a consequence could not meet its 
maturing obligations. 

 
In the management of liquidity, the Group monitors and maintains a level of cash deemed adequate by the 
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.  

 
The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at  
March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013 based on contractual undiscounted payments: 
 
 

March 31, 2014 

 
On 

demand 
Less than 
3 months 

3 to 6 
months 

6 to 12 
months Total 

Accounts payable and 
accrued expenses P=650,069 P=3,337 P=42,355 P=53,818 P=749,579 

Amounts owed to related parties – – – – – 
 P=650,069 P=3,337 P=42,355 P=53,818 P=749,579 

 
June 30, 2013 

 
On 

demand 
Less than 
3 months 

3 to 6 
months 

6 to 12 
months Total 

Accounts payable and  
accrued expenses P=901,694 P=27,152 P=9,960 P=95,349 P=1,034,155 

Amounts owed to related parties 2,673 – – – 2,673 
 P=904,367 P=27,152 P=9,960 P=95,349 P=1,036,828 

 
Foreign Currency Risk 
The Group’s foreign currency risk results primarily from movements of the Philippine Peso against the US 
Dollar.  The Group’s foreign currency risk arises primarily from its cash in banks and trade payables.   
 
The Group monitors and assesses cash flows from anticipated transactions and financing agreements 
denominated in US Dollar. 
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In translating the foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities to peso amounts, the 
exchange rates used were P=44.99 to US$1.00 and P=43.20 to US$1.00, the Philippine peso to U.S. dollar 
exchange rate as at March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013, respectively. 

 
The table below summarizes the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk as at March 31, 2014 and    
June 30, 2013.  Included in the table are the Group’s assets and liabilities at carrying amounts: 
 

 March 31, 2014 June 30, 2013 
  Peso  Peso 
 US Dollar Equivalent US Dollar Equivalent 
 (In Thousands) 
Financial Asset: 
 Cash in banks $55 P=2,463 $40 P=1,728 
Financial Liability:     
 Accounts payable 4 178 4 173 
Net financial asset  $51 P=2,285 $36 P=1,555 

 
The following table presents the impact on the Group’s income before income tax due to changes in the 
fair value of its financial assets and liabilities, brought about by a reasonably possible change in the    
US$/P= exchange rate (holding all other variables constant) as at March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013. 
 

 Change in Effect on Income 
 Currency Rate before tax 
 (In Thousands) 
March 31, 2014 +2.00% (P=46)
 -6.00%  137 
   
June 30, 2013 +1.00% (P=16)
 -2.00%  31 
   

There is no other impact on the Group’s equity other than those already affecting the consolidated 
statements of income. 
 
Equity Price Risk 
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equities decrease as the result of change in the levels of 
equity indices and the value of individual stock.  The equity price risk exposure arises from the Group’s 
investment in stocks.  Equity investment of the Group is categorized as AFS investments. 
 
The Group measures the sensitivity to its equity securities by using Philippine Stock Exchange index 
fluctuations and its effect to respective share prices. 
 
The Group’s policy is to maintain the risk to an acceptable level.  Movement of share price is monitored 
regularly to determine impact on its financial position. 

 
The basic sensitivity analysis assumes that the stock’s standard deviation on its historical yield for the past 
one year provides the basis for reasonably possible change in prices of the stock investment.  The Group 
establishes the relative range of stock investment yields based on historical standard deviation for one year.  
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Interest Rate Risk 
The Group’s exposure to the risk for changes in market interest rate relates to quoted debt instruments. 
 
The Group regularly monitors the market interest rate movements to assess exposure impact. 

 
The sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the interest rate (in basis points), with all other variables 
held constant, of the Group’s equity as at March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013 are as follows: 
 

 Changes in 
interest rates 

(in basis points) 
Sensitivity to 

equity 
March 31, 2014 +154 (P=6,222) 
 -154 6,222 
   
June 30, 2013 +155 (P=2,730) 
 -155 2,730 
   

The impact on the Group’s equity is caused by the changes in the market value of quoted debt due to 
interest rate movements. 

 
Capital Management 
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to optimize the use and earnings potential of 
the Group’s resources and considering changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the 
Group’s activities. 

 
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic 
conditions.  To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to 
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.  No changes were made in the objectives, 
policies or processes as at March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013. 

 
As at March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013, the Group considers the following accounts as capital: 
 
 

 March 31, 2014 June 30, 2013
Capital stock P=2,066,357 P=2,066,357 
Additional paid-in capital 829,904 829,904 
 P=2,896,261 P=2,896,261 

 
 The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements. 
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26. Financial Instruments 
 

The carrying values and fair values of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities as at           
March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013 are set out below: 

 
       

 
 
Fair Values of Financial Instruments 
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial 
instrument for which it is practicable to estimate such value: 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates its fair value due to the  
short-term maturity of this financial instrument 
Receivables, Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses and Amounts owed by/to Related Parties 
The carrying amounts receivables, accounts payable and accrued expenses and amounts owed by/to related 
parties approximate their fair values due to their short-term nature. 

 
Rental and Other Deposits 
Rental and other deposits estimated fair values are based on the discounted value of future cash flows 
using the applicable rates for similar types of loans.   
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AFS Investments 
AFS equity financial assets that are listed are based on their bid prices as at March 31, 2014 and June 30, 
2013.  AFS debt financial assets that are quoted are based on market prices.  Unquoted debt and nonlisted 
AFS financial assets are based on latest available transaction price at the end of the reporting period. 
 
HTM Investments 
HTM investments are based on quoted price. 

 
Fair Value Hierarchy 
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial 
instruments by valuation technique: 
 
 Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 

 
 Level 2 - Other techniques for which all inputs that have significant effect on the recorded fair value 

are observable, either directly or indirectly; and 
 

 Level 3 - Techniques that use inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market 
data (unobservable inputs). 

 
Assets measured at fair value 
 
March 31, 2014 
 
      Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
AFS Investments: 

    

 
Listed equity securities     P=1,035,129                 P= -                  P= -   

    
P=1,035,129  

 
Quoted debt securities        402,695                  -                   -          402,695  

 
Unquoted debt securities                 -              3,671                  -              3,671  

 
Nonlisted equity securities                 -            23,271                  -            23,271  

          P=1,437,824           P=26,942                  P=-       P=1,464,766  
 

June 30, 2013 
 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
AFS investments:     
 Listed equity securities P=1,007,720 P=– P=– P=1,007,720 
 Quoted debt securities 175,428 – – 175,428 
 Unquoted debt securities – 5,700 – 5,700 
 Nonlisted equity securities – 31,282 – 31,282 
 P=1,183,148 P=36,982 P=– P=1,220,130 

 
As at March 31, 2014, there are no transfers between Level 1 and 2 fair value measurements, and no 
transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurement.  
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PRIME ORION PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
AGING OF ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

 As at March 31, 2014 
 

       AMOUNT 
Current P=24,632  
1 to 30 days 2,180  
31 to 60 days 1,320  
61 to 90 days 2,267  
Over 90 days 93,796  

   Total receivable-trade             124,195  

   Advances to Employees 8,659  
Insurance receivable 738,482  
Others 64,160  
Total non-trade receivable             811,301  

   Total receivable         935,496  
   Allowance for doubtful accounts (140,907) 

                   P=794,589  
 



 

 



 

 

 


